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DAMPSKIBSSELBKABET ATALANTA A/S
et al. v. UNITED STATES.

Circuit Court of Appeals, Fifth Cirenit,
April 8, 1829

Rehearing Denied May 15, 1929,
’ No. 5824, '

1, Pllots €=2l/,=Pilot assoolation held not la«
ble for negllgence of members In performing
thelr dutles as pllots.

Pilot association, exercising no control over
manner in which duties of members as pilots are
to be performed, whether partnership or not,
dis not liable for megligence of its members in
performing their duties as pilots, as pilot can-
not be said to be an agent of association in that
respect,

2. Pilots ¢=(4—Master may displace pllot, If
he deems him incompetent, but Is not under
absolute duty to do so.

Pilot, when on board, is temporarily in
charge of navigation of ship, including duty of
determining her course and speed and time,
place, and manner of anchoring her, and, though
master i3 not entirely absolved of responsibility
when pilot is in charge, and has right to dis-
place pilet if he deems him incompetent and
circumstances warrant it, he is not under ab-
golute duty to do so, but is entitled to exercise
his sound discretion,

3. Pllots €= [6—Instruction that it was mas.
ter’s duty, as matter of law, to displace pllot,
It fogpy condition made It difficult for ship to
be operated, held error.

In action for damage to spur dikes when
vessel colliding with them while in charge of
pilot, instruction that, if foggy condition was
such ag to make it difficult for ship to be op-
erated at all, mnster or other officer was, as
matter of law, obliged to take ship from under
control of pilot, held erroneous, as question was
for jury under all the facts and circumstances.

4, Trial & (94 (15)=Instruction that failure of
pilot to anchor on navigation hecoming diffi-
eult hecause of fog was neollgence, notwith.
standing such anrchoring violated regulation,
held errer (Rivers and Harhors Act March 3,
1909, § 5 [33 USCA § 2]).

In action for damages to spur dikes with
which vessel collided while navigating South-
weat Pags in Mississippi river, instruction that,
if navigation beeame dificuit because of fog,
pilot was required to anchor, notwithstanding
it wviolated regulation enacted -pursuant to
Rivers and Harbors Act March 3, 1909, § 5
(33 USCA § 2), and that his failure to anchor
would be negligence, held erroneous, since ques-
tion whether he was guilty of negligence in navi-
gating in fog was for jury.

Appeal from the Distriet Court of the
United States for the Eastern District of
Louisiana; Louis H. Burns, Judge.

Action at law by the United States against
Danipskibsselskabet Atalanta A/S and oth-
ers. Judgment for plaintiff, and defendants
appeal. Reversed and remanded.
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H. F. Stiles, Jr., and Jos M. Rault, both
of New Orleans, La. (Terriberry, Young,
Rault & Carroll and Geo, H, Terriberry, all
of New Orleans, La.,, on the brief), for ap-
pellant Dampskibsselskabet Atalanta A/S.

Nat W. Bond and George Janvier, both
of Noew Orleans, La. (Janvier, Bond, Curtis,
Hall and Foster, of New Orleans, La., on the
brief), for appellant Associated Branch
Pilots of Port of New Orleans.

Luther I. Hall, of New Orleans, La., for
appellant Brecn..

Edmond E. Talbot, U, 8. Atty., of New
Orleans, La.

Before BRYAN and FOSTER, Circuit
Judges, and GRUBB, Distriet Judge.

FOSTER, Circuit Judge. At about 2:30
a. m, on. April 24, 1926, the steamship Sierra
Leona coliided with two spur dikes extending
& distance of 1,700 feet from the west bank

of Southwest Pass, in the Mississippi river,

and damaged them, The United States
brought an action at law against the Damp-
skibsselskabet Atalanta A /S, & Danish cor-
poration, owner of the vessel, against the
Associated Branch Pilots of the Port of New
Orleans, and against Xdmond Breen, s mem-
ber of the said association, who at the time
was employed in piloting the ‘vessel, to re-
eover damages alleged to be $3,717.62. In
general terms the petition alleged that the
vessel was negligently and improperly navi-
gated. The case was tried to a jury, and
resulted in a verdiet against the three defend-
ants, in the sum of $2,044.08, on which judg-
ment in solido was entered.

It appears from the record that the As-
sociated Branch Pilots of the Port of New
Orleans 1s an organization created by the
laws of Louisiana. Tt is composed of 35
members, each of whom is a pro rate owner
of all the assets of the organization. It owns
and operates pilot boets which are used for
the purpose of placing pilots on, and remov-
ing them from, vessels navigating the passes
at the mouth of the Mississippi river It
has no control over the Nicensing of pilots,
but does control membership in its own or-
ganization, Pilots are appointed by the
Governor of Lovisiana after an examination

by a board of examiners, which is a state

board composed of members of the associa-
tion, but not controlled by it.. Fees earned
by individual pilots are collected by the as-

" sociation. At the end of each month, all the

expenses of the organization are taken out
of the pool, and the balance is divided among
the members on the basis of the number of
days worked by cach.- Members of the as-
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sociation are assigned to work in regular
order; and no one is given any preference
over any of the others.

[1] In the course of the general charge, the
eourt, referring to the pilots’ association,
charged as follows: “I charge you as a mat-
ter of law in actions of this kind where one
of the pilots in the performance of his duty
as a member of that organization is guilty of
a negligent act in a case arising in tort such
as this, that because of the peculiar relation-
ship of the Associated Branch Pilots each to
the other, the pilots in the association are
bound -together with him for the results of
his negligent act.” Error is assigned thereto.

On the facts above stated the case comes

clearly within the rule announced in Guy v.
Donald, 203 U. 8. 399, 27 8. Ct. 63, 51 L.
Ed, 2L5 There is nothmg in the la,w of
Louisiana o take the defendant organization
out of the general rule. The case of The
Joseph Vaecare (D. C.) 180 F. 272, relied
upon by appellee, does not support such a
contention, as the question of responsibility
of ‘the association to third persons for the
negligent act of one of its members was pot
eonsidered in that case. The law of Louisi-
ana makes a distinction between trading or
commercial partnerships and partnerships
for the rendering of personal services, called
ordinary partnerships, but, for the purposes
of this case, it is immaterial whether a pilots’
association be considered a partnership or
not. The fundamental principle underlying
the exemption of pilots’ assoctations from lia-
bility for negligence of their members in
performing their duties as pilots is that the
association exercises no control over the man-
ner in which those duties are to be performed,
and therefore a pilot cannot be said to be an
agent of the association in that respeet. The
charge was e1ror,
{2,3] It appears from the record that at the
timo of the accident a dense fog prevailed,
so that it was impossible to see nhead for any
distance. The master and other officers of
the Sierra Leons were making their first voy-
gge through Southwest Pass, and knew noth-
ing of the geography and topography of
Southwest Pass or of the rules and regula~
tions pertaining to its navigation.

The following part of the general charge
was excepted fo:

“As a matter of law I charge you if you
believe the foggy condition was such as to
make it diffieult for the ship to. be operated
ot all, then the master, or first or second of-
ficer of the ship in the master’s absence, was
obliged to take the ship from under’ the con-
trol of the pilet,”
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The purpose of requiring & vessel to take
a pilot is to have her in charge of a compe-
tent person, familiny with partieular waters,
‘When on ‘board he is temporarily in charge
of ‘her whole navigation, ineluding the duty
of determining her course and specd, and the
time, place, and manner of anchoring ber. .
The master is not entirely absolved of re-
gponsibility when a pilot is in charge, but be-
fore he is justified in displacing him he should
be sure that the pilot is for some reason in-
competent. Ralli v, Troop, 157 U, 8. 386, 16
8. Ct. 657, 30 L. Ed. 742, The Oregon, 158
U. 8. 186, 15 8. Ct. 804, 39 L, Bd. 943. The
Bierra Leona was in charge of a compulsory
pilot for whose negligence her owners were
not responsible in an asction at law. Homer
Ramsdell Co. v. La Compagnie Generale
Transatlantique, 182 U. 8. 406, 21 8. Ct. 831,
456 L. Ed. 1155.  Unless the master was also
guilty of negligence contributing to the ae-
cident, the owner of the Sierra Leona was
entitled to be absolved.

As the master knew nothing about the
local conditions, it would seem that in the
excreise of sound diseretion he was justified
in leaving her navigation entirely to the pilot
a8, but for the subsequent accidént, there is
nothing in the record to even suggest that
the pilot was incompetent. Aside from this,
the navigation of the ship was primarily in
charge of the pilot, and, while the master had
the right, if he deemed him incompetent and
circnmstances warranted it, to displace him,
he was not under the absolute duty to do so,
but was entitled to exercise his sound- discre-
tion. . Whether he should have displaced him,
on the facts shown, was not a matter of law
for the court, but was a question to be deter-
mined by the jury on all the facts and cir-
cumstances of the case. The just quoted por-
tion of the charge left nothing for the jury
and was error.

[4] It appears that under the Rivers and
Harbors Act of March 38,1900, § 5 {33 USCA
§ 2), the Secretary of Wa.r is authorized to
make rules and regulations for the naviga-
tion of South and Southwest Pass of the
Mississippi river, and that any willful viola-
tion of any rulé or regulation made by the
Secretury of War in pursuance of that act
is a misdemeanor, for which the pilot of a
vessel so offending may. be punished by a
fine of not less than $100 nor exceeding $500,
or by imprisonment not exceeding three
months, or by both. ' In the regulations adopt-
ed May 11, 1820, it is provided that vesscls
anchoring in Southwest Pass shall take posi-
tion near the eastern bank and above a point
marked by a post, painted white, on the bank
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“about one #nd one-half miles above South-
west Pass lighthouse.

The defendant Edrmond Breen, sworn &8
& witriess in his own behalf, testified in sub-
stance that, after the vessel had passed by the
anchorage post which designates the anchor-
age grounds in Sonthwest Pass, a fog came
up that obseured the bank of the pass, range
lights and range targets making it necessary
te navigate entirely by compass, and that he
gove the helmsman the eorreet compass bear-
ing to steer by.

In the course of his charge, the judge
charged the jury as follows: “Now some-
thing has been said here with respect tothis
regulation, the regulation pertaining to the
anchorage of ships in Southwest Pass before
the white post. I charge you as a matter of
law that that regulation was meant only as
such regulations are always meant, to pre-
vent the anchorage of vesscls down in that
pass within & few miles of the sea, except—
because nll such regulations are subject to
exception—when it would be dangerous for
them to pursue the course through there oth-
erwise. The pilot had no right to take the
vessel through, but stop (should have
stopped) before going further in the fog
from the moment of his confusion—if you
believe he beeame confused—and it was his
duty to anchor the vessel right then and
there in the Pass. Jis failure to do so and
failure of the master of the ship to have him
do so would amount to such negligence as
would make them liable for the result of their
acts begnnsoe it is as matter of law a negligent
thing to run a ship in such a narrow pass
under the cireumstances disclosed by this evi-
dence, when ordinary prudence would dictate
the stopping of the ship, if not her anchor-
ing.”

We may assume that a pilot is bound to
have a high degree of skill and to use more
than ordinary eare, but, if he in good faith
exercises sound judgment, it does not follow
that he is guilty of negligence merely because
the vessel in bis charge unfortunately has an
acecident.

Primarily, a pilot is bound to obey the
rules made by proper authority to govern
the waters he is navigating. In this case the
pilot was confronted with a very serious
difficulty. The rule above quoted is evident-
ly intended to prevent collisions between ves-
sels navigating the pass, and all those doing
so are entitled to rely upon it. If he had
anchored his ship at the time and place where
it became difficult to navigate in the fog, he
wounld have violated the rule, and possibly
have subjected himself fo a severe penalty,

“another vessel,

and dlso might have caused & collision with
Conceding that the rule is
subject #o exceptions, and that navigating in
& fog under certain conditions may be negli-
gence, if in the excreise of his best judgment
he thought it safer to proceed as he did, he
was entitled to the consideration of the jury
on the question of his negligence. Davidson
8. 8. Co. v. U, 8, 205 U. 8. 187, 27 8. Ct.
480, 51 L. Ed. 764. The charge virtually
took the question of negligence away from
the jury, and was error,

Other ervors are assigned, but, as those
above considered dispose of the main conten-
tions of all the defendants, it is unnecessary
to eonsider them.

Reversed and remanded,

OLD TIME MOLASSES CO. et al. v. UNITED
STATES. et al.

OLD TIME MOLASSES CO. v. NEW OR-
LEANS CQAL & BISSO TOW-
BOAT CO.

Cireuit Court of Appeals, Tifth Circuit.
April 8, 1929,

‘Rehearing Denied May 15, 1929,
Nos. 5418, 5419,

., Collision €=98--Vessel heading across river
~in Jeaving harbor held at fault in not keeping
lookout and in assenting te approaching ves-
sel’s passing signal,

Vessel leaving New Orleans harbor held at
fault in collision with vessel nseending the river,
where, in making turn, it failed to keep sharp
lookout, and it assented to the ascending ves-
sel’s signal for starboard passing, though it
was then headed across the river, and its tug’s
engines had been going astern for two ov three
minutes without appreeiable effect.

2, Collislon &=90—Vessel entering crowded

harbor must exercise more than ordinary care,

A vessel entering a crowded harbor such

as New Orleans is bound to exercise more than
ordinary care,

3. Collision &9 —Vessel held at fauit in fail-
ing to slow down when vessel answering pass-
ing signal was not then In position to pass
(Pilot Rules, Rule 1),

Vessel ascending Mississippi rviver held at
fault, in view of I’ilot Tules, Rule 11, in coliid-
ing with vessel Jeaving New Orlenns harbor,
where, after receiving answer to signal for
starboard passing it proceeded without slowing
down, though the other vessel's lights indicated
that it was headed across the river, and not
then in & position to pass to the right.

4. Colllsion &=95(2)—Tug engaged in moving
vessel which collided with another vesse! held
not at fault.

Where navigation and handling of vessel and
tug engaged in moving it were in charge of the



